
Payette City Council  Page 1 of 5 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
01/05/2009 

MINUTES 
PAYETTE CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING 
January 5, 2009 

 
 

 

7:00 Regular Meeting 
 
A regular meeting of the Payette City Council was called to order at 7:00 PM by Mayor Henderson in 
the City Council Chambers of Payette City Hall, 700 Center Avenue. 

 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Members Present: Mayor Henderson, Ivan Mussell, Jeff Williams, Lee Nelson, Les Cochran, Mark 

Heleker 
 
Members Absent: Georgia Hanigan 
 
Also Present: Police Chief Mark Clark; City Engineer Doug Argo; Mary Cordova, City 

Coordinator/Clerk; Tiffany Howell, Utility Clerk; Police Captain Dave Platt; Jeff 
Ward, Independent Enterprise; Tim Folke; Gene Lancaster 

 
PLEDGE 
 
Mayor Henderson led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 

 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

Mussell moved and Heleker seconded a motion to approve 
the meeting minutes of 12/15/08 as written with changes 
noted. 

 
              After a unanimous voice vote by the Council, the motion  
             CARRIED. 
 
 

 
APPROVAL OF BILLS & PAYROLL 
 

A motion was made by Williams and seconded by Cochran to      
approve the City Bills & Payroll in the amount of $339,664.38. 

 
             At the roll call: 
             Ayes: Nelson, Mussell, Williams, Cochran, Heleker 
             Nays: 
 
            The motion CARRIED. 

 
SPECIAL ORDERS 

 



Payette City Council  Page 2 of 5 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
01/05/2009 

None Heard. 
 

COMMUNICATIONS 
 
None Heard. 
 
PLANNING & ZONING 
 
None Heard. 
 

OLD BUSINESS 
 
 None Heard. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
A. Presentation of FY2008 Audit 

- Tim Folke, CPA 
 
Mr. Folke explained that during an audit he firsts looks over all the financial 
statements, and second Mr. Folke makes sure that the City is in compliance with the 
State and with Federal grant money. Mr. Folke stated that he found two things. The 
first one relates to segregation of duties, and by that he means that we have 3 or 4 
people doing what in a text book world would take 20 people to do. Mr. Folke stated 
that financial statement reporting is a fairly new standard. Mr. Folke stated that the 
accountants in Connecticut that create the standards seem to think that all entities 
should have CPA’s on board preparing the audit reports, and if you don’t do that we 
are supposed to cite you. Mr. Folke stated that he noticed a couple of items during 
the audit, and one of them was that the City had a lot of bank accounts, and also the 
FDIC coverage was not that strong. Mr. Folke stated that all of those items have 
been taken care of now.  

Mr. Folke stated that he thinks it would be good in the future to monitor the Urban 
Renewal Agency a little better as far as payments go. Mr. Folke stated that as far as 
Capital Assets are concerned, the City should have an itemized list of those items 
and enter them into the accounting system. Mr. Folke stated that to make this chore 
a little easier we should count items with an individualized item value of $5,000. He 
recommends doing that within the next few months, and making it a City policy.  

Mr. Folke stated the last item he wanted to cover was the City Financial 
Performance. The City has two types of funds; Governmental funds, and they are 
more budget related and dependent upon grant and tax money coming in. The 
second one is Proprietary funds, and that is where the City runs more like a 
business. Mr. Folke stated that on page 11 of the audit, it shows the performance for 
the proprietary fund, and those look pretty good. Mr. Folke stated that on page 10 the 
water fund has just shy of $100,000 and the sewer fund is about half a million. Mr. 
Folke stated this may sound like a lot, but the City will be finishing up construction 
before too long and that will be turned out in the form of bonds, but it is good to have 
a little bit under your belt. The street fund did nicely about $390,000; again we have 
some substantial street expenditure in this current year so much of that will be eaten 
up. Mr. Folke stated that the General fund lost $663,000; on top of that a prior period 
adjustment was made. Mr. Folke stated that the prior year the General fund included 
the half a million dollar “IOU” from the Payette Urban Renewal Agency. Mr. Folke 
stated that to make a long story short, the general fund had an ending reserve of 
about $1 million dollars. At the current rate for the 07-08 year and two more years 
and that is it for the general fund. Mr. Folke stated that there is plenty of time (a year 



Payette City Council  Page 3 of 5 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
01/05/2009 

and nine months) to turn things around a little bit by either bringing in more money in 
or spending less. 
 

Councilor Heleker asked if proprietary is the same as business. Mr. Folke stated 
yes, they are the same thing. Councilor Heleker stated that he see in some places 
that the Urban Renewal Agency is listed with $26,094 and on another page it’s 
$27,350. Councilor Heleker asked if there was tax included in one, or why is there a 
difference? Mr. Folke stated that the first figure is on the balance sheet and the 
second figure is on the income statement. Mr. Folke stated that the figure you see is 
the City is permitted by Idaho Code to form the Payette Urban Renewal Agency, and 
there was half a million qualified expenses spent for that. Mr. Folke stated that since 
the City advanced the money to the Urban Renewal Agency it was recorded as a 
loan to them, so the Urban Renewal Agency owed that money back to the City. Mr. 
Folke stated that as they collect tax dollars they will pay that loan back, however the 
Urban Renewal Agency cannot levy the taxes, and it is a cut based upon the 
increase in property values within the boundary of the agency and any new 
construction. Mr. Folke stated that right now both of those are slow, if not going 
backwards. Mr. Folke stated that right now the Urban Renewal Agency paid almost 
all of the interest to the City, but it hasn’t made a dent yet in the $500,000. Mr. Folke 
stated that on the balance sheet we had interest payable September 30, 2008 of 
$26,000. Mr. Folke stated that on the income statement their interest expense was 
$27,000 and the taxes collected was $24,000. The amount payable is more than the 
expense because we did not wipe out the payable from the year before, we just 
added to it.  

Councilor Heleker asked Mr. Folke what he meant by “we need to monitor” the 
Urban Renewal Agency. Mr. Folke stated that when he checked at the County they 
sent the checks to the City for the Urban Renewal Agency. When Mr. Folke went 
back to the County the checks were still outstanding. Mr. Folke stated that the 
County voided the old checks and re-issued new checks to the agency. Mr. Folke 
stated that when he sees things like this it raises an issue of maybe someone 
monitoring that money. Councilor Heleker asked Mr. Folke if there was a date that 
the Council should be expecting the check. Mr. Folke stated yes, you should receive 
one by the end of January, and one by the end of July.  

Councilor Williams stated that Mr. Folke made a comment about the Street 
Department making money. Councilor Williams stated if the street department does 
not have as many expenses as it should. Mr. Folke stated that we do have a budget 
versus actual for the street department and overall there were some additional grant 
money that came in. Mr. Folke stated that the major item was that there wasn’t 
enough spent as was budgeted. Councilor Williams stated that it looked like we 
budgeted that we would have a deficit in the street department originally. Clerk 
Cordova stated that the big item we received last year was the refund for the right-of-
way purchases in excess of $300,000. Mr. Folke stated that he has never seen 
where a City would budget to have a deficit. Councilor Williams stated that on page 
28 the original budgeted amount for revenue was $1,540,000 and we anticipate on 
having expenditures of $1,710,000. Clerk Cordova stated that for last year’s budget 
we had more expenditure’s and last year’s entire budget had to do with the 7th 
Avenue North project. Clerk Cordova stated that I don’t think we budgeted to be in a 
deficit. Councilor Nelson stated that the Council has been told in the past that the 
unencumbered funds were too high. What is a good percentage to be at? Mr. Folke 
stated that if the City is growing it is a good idea to increase the reserves. Councilor 
Williams stated that a comment was made that 30-50% of the annual expenditures is 
a healthy reserve amount for each department any feedback on that? Mr. Folke 



Payette City Council  Page 4 of 5 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
01/05/2009 

stated that he doesn’t like to nail it down to percentages; it all depends on what the 
city’s plans are for the future and what do the citizens want.  
 

B. Approval of 2009 Rescheduled Council Meetings due to Holidays 
 

Heleker moved and Williams seconded a motion to approve 
the 2009 rescheduled dates of January 20, February 17 and 
September 8th. 
 

              After a unanimous voice vote by the Council, the motion  
             CARRIED. 

 
 

C. Appointment of Gene Gray to the Payette Forestry Commission 
 

Heleker moved and Nelson seconded a motion to appoint 
Gene Gray to the Payette Forestry Commission. 
 

              After a unanimous voice vote by the Council, the motion  
             CARRIED. 

 
 

D. Notice of Tort Claim 
 

Heleker moved and Mussell seconded a motion to deny the 
Tort Claim from Gerald Mitchell and refer it to ICRMP. 
 

              After a unanimous voice vote by the Council, the motion  
             CARRIED. 

 
 

DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS 
 

 Clerk Cordova stated that the Street Department took 359 dump truck loads to the dump for 
fall clean up.  

 Chief Sands stated that one of his firefighters broke their thumb this morning during a fire.  
 
Councilor Williams asked Chief Sands if he thinks the total fire calls are down 25% because of 
education. Chief Sands said that and weather are the reasons.  

 
CITIZENS COMMENTS 
  
Gene Lancaster – 11428 Scotch Pines Rd; Payette, ID  
 
 Mr. Lancaster stated that three months ago the Council voted on a change of ordinance that he 
presented. Mr. Lancaster stated he has not heard anything further about the ordinance, and wants to 
know if it is in the works. Mayor Henderson stated that administration is working on right now, and we 
plan on having that available before spring. Mayor Henderson stated that hopefully when the 
economy turns around, and building 50 or 60 houses this spring that we will be ready to roll with it. 
Councilor Mussell explained to Mayor Henderson that it would be nice to have it by the end of 
February. Councilor Williams stated that everyone in City government knows we want to be 
progressive, but if you have a developer from somewhere else they don’t have a clue that we are 
thinking of changing our ordinance. Councilor Williams stated I’m sure there are plenty of other things 



Payette City Council  Page 5 of 5 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
01/05/2009 

to do, but I think it should become a little more of a priority than what it has in the last three months. 
Mayor Henderson stated that the administrative staff will get it out as soon as humanly possible.  
   
 
MAYOR’S COMMENTS 
 

 The agenda was not posted due to some technical difficulties with the folder that the 
agenda is uploaded to. 

 The Executive session has been cancelled. Administration no longer has the need or 
request for that.  

 
ADJOURNMENT 

    
      A motion was made by Heleker and seconded Williams 
      by to adjourn. 
 

After a unanimous voice vote, the motion CARRIED, and 
the Council adjourned at 7:39 PM. 

 
     Signed this ______day of ____________, 2008. 
 
 

____________________________________ 
      DOUGLAS E. HENDERSON, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Mary Cordova, City Clerk 

 


